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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN} PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Dr. Gehrings home and clinic occupied a large, rambling frame
house. Built in 1896, it is of the Queen Anne style mixed with elements
of Colonial Revival. The house stands two stories at the cornice level with
dormers in the roof to light a third flooxr. Numerous windows flanked with
shutters piette the walls on all sides. The main part of the house is
rectangular with two ells projecting from the rear corners at an angle.
The three sections together embrace the southeast lawn which leads to the
beautifully landscaped yard and woods. The east ell is the service wing,
while the one story west ell was used as the doctor's study. It is a
handsome house, sheathed in yellow clapboards with white trim and dark
green shutters beneath a high pitched roof. Interestingly, this same
color scheme is seen throughout the town of Bethel.
-eavoLs

Na A wide balustraded porch/wraps around the front half of the house.
Wooden steps lead to a portico which shelters the main entrance on the
northwest facade. The portico extends the width of the porch and is supported
by Ionic columns. The door is enframed by sidelights and a wide fanlight
of frosted plass. To the left of the door are two double-hung windows. A
three part window decorated with a window box is on the second story. A
bay window overlooks the railed roof of the portico. The bayed projection
extends into the cornice. Centered over this bay is a wide gabled dormer.
The vertical face displays a Palladian window protected by a turned rail,
Two double hung w1ndows occupy the right bay of the facade, one on each story.
In the west coriier is 4 round turret capped ‘Wwith 'a conical roof. Shutterless
sash windows 'curvé ardund the tu¥ret’'on both stories.

oy

FolMowing the toweraround 'to 'thé West side of the house Lléads to a one
story vestibule. Above, on the second floor, is a double—hung w1ndow with
a three part ‘window t6 the right. Centered in the roof is a dotmet” bearing
a single sash window.

O N ot

Projecting from this wall and continuing the roof line of the vestibule
v/ 'in a southwestern direction is the ome story ell, A three sectioned picture
window is centered on the wall to the right of a small Palladian window of
stained glass. A fireplace chimney is situated in a small projection at the
end of the ell flanked by two small cormer windows. The back wall facing
southeast contains another picture window centrally located on the wall.

The rear elevation of the main part of the building is transformed ipto
a ribbon of glass panes grouped within a three bay windowed gable projection
on the first floor. Pilasters divide the ribbon into five windows complimented
by a glass-paned door at the left side. Two double hung windows flank the
chimney on the second floor. To the right is a round-arched window made of
stained glass. Aligned with this is a roof dormer at the third story level.

The service ell projects from the right side to complete the angled
enclosure of the southeast lawn. The inner bay displays a three part
picture window in a small projection. The end wall of the projection is
pierced by an oval window. Two small, narrow windows complete the wall on
the first story. Above on the second story are two double—hung windows next
(see continuation sheets Y )
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to a pair of side-by-side double-hung windows over the picture window.

The end wall of the ell is designed for service use. A door is centered
on the first story under an unusual overhang. Two double-hung windows
on the second story were placed at each end but avoid the side chimney. The
northeast wall of the service ell is divided into three bays marked by three
double-~hung windows on the first story. The second story has similar windows
in each bay, except for the right bay which contains two small narrow windows
and an oval stair window. A single dormer is centered on the roof.

The front porch wraps around the north corner of the house to reach the
wall of the service ell, where the side stairs are to be found. A second
portico supported by Ionic columns shelters a side door and sash window.
Overlooking the railed portico roof are double-hung windows.

The clinic building owes its irregular plan and round turret to its
Queen Anne design. The style featured these elements as well as the use
of a variety of window forms such as straight-topped and rounded-headed
windows with clear, frosted, or stained glass panes. The house combines
these elements beautifully, adding a Colonial simplicity to make it a well
integrated house design.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The National Training Laboratory Conference Center in Bethel was once
the home and clinic of Dr. John George Gehring. Here Dr. Gehring used
the methods of suggestion and auto-suggestion ih psycho-therapy to treat
people with nervous disorders early in the twentieth century.

John Gehring was born in Cleveland, Ohio in 1857. He obtained a
graduate degree in medicine from Western Reserve Univeristy in 1885, and
then became a professor at Wooster Univergity in Ohio., He continued his
studies in Berlin, Germany. Later he returned to the United States to.
become a practicing surgeon in Cleveland. This career was cut short
however, due to ill health caused by a nervous condition.

At the age of thirty he and his wife moved to Bethel. Mrs. Gehring
was the daughter of Dr. Nathaniel Tuckerman True of that town.  Dr. True
was the principal of Gould Academy and the founder of the Farmer's Club
Movement in Maine. While in Bethel Dr. Gehring learned of the work of
Dr. Frederick Gerrish, the pioneer psychologist in the treatment of
nerwus. disorders by suggestion and auto-suggestion. Gehring had always
been interested 1n neryous dlsorders and went to Portland to study with
Dr. Gerrish. Latér'he went'td Europé as'a patient to have the new treat-
ment tried out on him. The cure worked, and Gehring was restored to good
health.

He returned to Bethel and began using the new method$.  Success
brought many patients, mostly of a high level of intelligence. At the
suggestion of his wife, he opened their home to the patients as a rest—home.
Between twelve and fourteen of the patients lived at the house, the rest
staylng in town. Bethel bécame an intellectual center, once referrred to
as "the resting place of Harvard University".

The treatment they received included sessions with the_ soft spoken,
calm yet vigorous’ c‘loctor, physical activity such as outdoor work in the
garden or chopping wood; all to be ended by a formal dinner every night
with the doctor and his wife.

An outlet for Gehring's own tensions was his love for botany and
landscape gardening. The house was surrounded by extensive lawns, flower
beds and rare shrubs worked by the doctor and his patients. The maples

(see continuation sheet)
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lining the drive were planted by Dr. True's students at Gould Academy.
Gehring did the planting for his father-in-law's school, the Bethel

Inn, and the connecting street. The Inn was built by some of the doctor's
patients and dedicated to him.

Dr. Gehring's Clinic was run with the help of Mrs. Gehring. She
was a woman with musical and literary interests, as well as being devoted
to the uplift of the young people of the town and the welfare of her
husband's patients.

The famous psycho-therapist retired from active practice around
1925. He remained in Bethel until his death in 1932.



